
BOH Executive Session Minutes 6-11-12   Page 1 of 4 

Board of Health 
Executive Session 
Meeting Minutes 

June 11, 2012 
  
Members Present:    Staff Present: 
Tom Kinzer, Co-Chair   Heidi Porter, Director 
Bea Brunkhorst, Co-Chair,   Mary Firestone, Recording Secretary 
Sarah Thompson     
Kevin Wormstead    Also Attending: 
      Richard Reed, Town Manager   
      Jessica Porter, Assistant Town Manager 
Members Absent:     
Anita Raj   
       
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 P.M.   Dr. Brunkhorst chaired. 
 
Mr. Kinzer moved to enter executive session to discuss the upcoming contract negotiations with the 
school nurses.  Mr. Wormstead seconded the motion.  Mr. Kinzer voted, Aye; Dr. Brunkhorst voted, 
Aye; Ms. Thompson voted, Aye; Mr. Wormstead voted, Aye.  Vote count: 4-0 
 
Ms. Heidi Porter distributed spreadsheets showing both town and union proposals, as well as a 
statement from the nurses. 
 
Mr. Reed thanked the Board for holding this meeting.  Under the town charter and Provision 150 of the 
Massachusetts General Laws, the Town Manager is responsible for collective bargaining.  He consults 
with the Board of Health in the case of the school nurse union.  Based on the initial proposals 
presented by the school nurses, the town is confronted with having to pay an 18% increase over the 
next three years.  The reason is that the school nurses are represented by the Massachusetts Nurses 
Association (MNA) which is interested in getting all school nurses salaries on par with teachers in their 
respective communities (i.e. pay equity).  MNA’s thought is that school nurses are professionals at the 
same level as teachers and we ought to be able to pay the nurses on parity with our teachers.  The 
problem extends over the approximately 200 school districts in the state.  He said that Ms. H. Porter 
conducted a survey of current school nurse salaries from comparable area communities; she found that 
some town provide for salaries for nurses up to the Ph.D. level.  Mr. Reed noted that ten towns without 
a Ph.D. provision pay $40,809 to $62,320 according to information current to FY12.  Bedford’s pay 
scale is not far off the minimum, though no Bedford nurses are at the minimum; Bedford’s maximum 
is $57,821.  He reviewed the situation as follows: 
 
Union Option A, for FY12 all full-time nurses at the maximum Step 9 receive $57,821, with 4.5% 
between steps.  For FY 13 (the first year of a 3 year contract), they want a new step schedule, with 5% 
between steps, to make Step 8 $60,371 (the step at which the 4 full time school nurses would enter).  
They are also looking for a 1% increase as of July 1, 2012, which they would not begin earning until 
September.  FY14 would need to be 6% higher than the previous year, with a tenth step, and FY15 
another 1% higher with an eleventh step.  The part-time nurse would get her increase each year on her 
anniversary date.  The union’s Option B would have only 10 steps, but the first step would be begin at 
a higher salary and increases would be more rapid, with an impact of less than .5% in year 1. 
 
Mr. Reed said that the nurses had presented another higher proposal first and the town subsequently 
asked the nurses for a lower proposal. This was presented as Options A and B.  He said that the town 



BOH Executive Session Minutes 6-11-12   Page 2 of 4 

didn’t agree to the initial Union proposal during the last contract negotiation period and has still not 
caught up with the requested salaries from the last negotiation period.  The school nurses used to be 
treated as year-round employees providing community health services.  In the first year that they were 
given summers off, they gave up increases.  Now they are treated as and called “school nurses” and 
have been performing professionally as school nurses.  The majority of school nurses in the state are 
under school departments, not under Boards of Health.  The possibility exists to get the Selectmen and 
the Financial Committee to give more than 2.1% but it would need to pass at the special Town Meeting 
in the Fall. 
 
Mr. Wormstead asked what increases the other town employee unions, other than teachers, will be 
getting.  Mr. Reed said that the firefighters will be getting 1.25%.  Mr. Wormstead said that the 
requested school nurse increases would be more of a burden on property owners; there will be 
questions at the Town Meeting on why the nurses are getting more.  Mr. Reed said that if the nurses 
gave up some benefits, the money could be applied to their salaries.  Ms. H. Porter said that benefits, 
for uniforms, insurance, and continuing education, total $850 per nurse annually.  Mr. Reed mentioned 
cashing in unused sick time at retirement.  Ms. H. Porter said that the nurses’ uniform consists of a 
white jacket and they are supposed to wear scrubs.  Ms. Thompson said that the clothing allowance is 
definitely negotiable.  Mr. Wormstead asked whether the uniform allowance comes out of the same 
fund as salary; Mr. H. Porter said, “No, it comes out of expenses.” 
 
Mr. Kinzer asked whether there had been any discussion with the Financial Committee.  Mr. Reed said 
that the Financial Committee does not have a role in collective bargaining.  Dr. Brunkhorst asked 
whether any nurses are expected to retire; Ms. H. Porter said, “No.”  Ms. Thompson asked about 
differing salaries for nurses with Bachelor’s or Master’s degrees.  Mr. Reed said that they are not being 
offered more for a Master’s degree.  Dr. Brunkhorst asked whether nurses are offered more for 
advanced degrees; Mr. Reed said that that they would if they were on a teachers’ salary schedule.  Dr. 
Brunkhorst said that over the last ten years, the job responsibilities have become more complex.  Mr. 
Wormstead said that the nurses deserve a raise, but he asked what the town can afford.  Mr. Reed 
explained that the teachers got .5% mid-year; their total contract base is up 3% in 3 years.   
 
Dr. Brunkhorst asked what the nurses’ reaction would be to the new proposal, whether they would 
demand mediation.  Mr. Reed replied, “I don’t think so.”  Mr. Wormstead suggested that giving the 
nurses the salary level they want would give then an incentive to stay in Bedford.  Mr. Reed said that 
the town unions took a zero percent increase last year; if other unions saw a COLA, they would be 
interested in getting that, too, so stick with step increases of 4.5%.  Ms. H. Porter said that the current 
union proposal is 5% between steps.  Mr. Reed said that the maximum for teachers with a Bachelor’s 
degree is around $70,000.  Ms. Thompson asked whether everyone is happy with their job description.  
Mr. H. Porter said, “Yes.”   
 
Mr. Reed said that if it gets to the point that the town can’t afford the nurses’ salaries, it would have to 
consider eliminating the part-time nursing position.  Dr. Brunkhorst asked whether they would end up 
paying more for substitute nurses.  Ms. H. Porter said that legally it is necessary to have a nurse in each 
building for a certain number of students.  Dr. Brunkhorst said that having a part-time substitute may 
be cheaper.  Ms. H. Porter said, “Yes, but scheduling is difficult and time consuming.”  Mr. Reed said, 
“We have to argue for paying what the market is paying.  We have been and are behind.  We will 
probably have to increase on the next contract, too.”  Ms. H. Porter asked what would be expected at 3 
years; Mr. Reed said “5%.”  Ms. Thompson asked: “Is there a sense of the nurses’ reaction if there 
were no step increase in FY14, a proposal not yet seen by the nurses.  Mr. Reed said that in FY14 there 
is no halfway increase; he said that in the school budget, every year even if there is no COLA, there are 
step increases.  Mr. Kinzer said that if the increases had to be justified at Town Meeting, the change in 



BOH Executive Session Minutes 6-11-12   Page 3 of 4 

the job compared to 10 years ago is to a more professional level.  Mr. Reed asked about the clothing 
allowance.  Ms. H. Porter said that the $850 includes professional malpractice insurance, which is 
required, and CEUs (continuing education units) are also necessary.  Mr. Reed said that people would 
usually prefer money in their pockets which also counts toward an increased pension.  Mr. Wormstead 
said that pension increase would be more expensive to the town in the long run. 
 
Mr. Kinzer asked, “Where do we stand on what we’re trying to accomplish?”  Ms. H. Porter said, 
“Trying to keep the number of steps down.”   
 
Mr. Reed said, “If the last steps are going to be what they are, eventually we are going to hire at first 
steps.  I think what I heard from the Board is that we’ll take the second increase in FY14 and make 
them an offer --- they pay for their own uniforms and CEUs.  That will make the 2.92% affordable this 
year.  We will go to town meeting for the difference between 2.1% and 2.92%.  Once town meeting 
votes to approve the contract, we must pay them through the contract term.  We are not obligated to 
retain a certain level of staffing; generally the least senior person is impacted and may result in reduced 
hours.”  Ms. H. Porter said, “Even though we sign a contract, Fin Com can still say the money is not 
available.”  Mr. Reed said, “Yes.  You go back to the union --- they have to make the decision because 
we are obligated by the contract.  There is no salary offer on the table yet.  We can make it off-the- 
record” so the mediator can’t use it.  We can make an on-the-record offer with two step increases.   
Making both an on- and off-record offers is unusual.”  Ms. Porter asked Mr. Reed, “Do you want me to 
work up both?”  Mr. Reed replied, “Yes.  We will meet again --- you, me, and Jess.  We still have 
other union contacts open, more than usual. 
 
Dr. Brunkhorst asked about the health insurance plan.  Mr. Reed said that the nurses were the first unit 
to accept the lower cost plan.  Full implementation of the plan is expected to result in a savings of $1.3 
million.   
 
The Board thanked Mr. Reed. 
 
Mr. Wormstead moved to close the executive session.  Mr. Kinzer voted, Aye; Dr. Brunkhorst voted, 
Aye; Ms. Thompson voted, Aye; Mr. Wormstead voted, Aye.  Vote count: 4-0-0 
 
Ms. Thompson moved to adjourn the meeting; Mr. Wormstead seconded the motion.  Vote count: 4-0 
 



Future meetings of the Board will take place on July 23 and September 10,2 12.

~ 1bVd\\\M0\)
Bea Brunkhorst, Co-Chair

Anita Raj

Kevin Wormstead

BOH Executive Session Minutes 6-11-12 Page 4 of4


